
 
 
 
If you would like help to understand this document please call William Reed, Democratic Services 
Manager or  in advance of the meeting. 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions of the Board 
Member, City Development 
 
 
 

Date: Thursday 2 February 2012 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Town Hall, Oxford 

 
For any further information please contact:  

William Reed, Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: 01865 252230 

Email: wreed@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at in our Town Hall and 
Ramsay House (St. Ebbe's Street) reception areas and at public libraries. 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website - www.oxford.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at www.oxford.gov.uk/ebulletins 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Delegated Decisions of the Board Member, City 
Development 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair   
 
 Councillor Colin Cook City Development 

 
 
The quorum for this meeting is three members.  Substitutes are not permitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE 
PUBLIC BUSINESS 

 
 
  Pages 

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 

 Guidance on personal and personal prejudicial interests is attached to 
these agenda pages. 
 

 

 

2 PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

 

 

 Members of the public may, if the Board Member agrees, ask a 
question of the Board Member on any item for decision on this agenda 
(other than on the minutes).  The full text of any question must be 
notified to the Head of Law and Governance by no later than 9.30 am 
two clear working days before the meeting.  Questions by the public 
will be taken as read and, at the Board Member’s discretion, 
responded to either orally or in writing at the meeting.  No 
supplementary question or questioning will be permitted. 
 
The total time permitted for this item will be 15 minutes. 
 
 

 

3 COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES 

 

 

 City Councillors may, at the Board Member’s discretion, ask a question 
or address the Board Member on an item for decision on the agenda 
(other than on the minutes).  The full text of any question and the 
nature of any address must be notified to the Head of Law and 
Governance by no later than 9.30 am two clear working days before 
the meeting.  Questions by councillors will be taken as read and, at the 
Board Member’s discretion, responded to either orally or in writing at 
the meeting.  No supplementary question or questioning will be 
permitted.  If an address is made, the Board member will either 
respond or have regard to the points raised in reaching her or his 
decision.  If the address is by the Chair of a Scrutiny Committee or her 
or his nominee then the Board member will be required to say as part 
of their decision whether they accept the Scrutiny recommendations 
made. 
 
 

 

 

 

 



 

4 WAYFINDING IMPLEMENTATION PROJECT 

 

1 - 6 

 This report will invite the Board Member to grant project approval and 
delegated powers to the Executive Director for City Services to award 
a contract for the manufacture, installation and ongoing maintenance 
of City centre wayfinding signage. 
 
 

 

5 MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 

 

 

 If the Board member wishes to exclude the press and the public from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the exempt 
from publication part of the agenda, it will be necessary for the Board 
member to pass a resolution in accordance with the provisions of 
Paragraph 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2000 on the grounds 
that their presence could involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as described in specific paragraphs of Schedule I2A of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
  
The Board member may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in 
all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 

 



 

 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
What is a personal interest? 
 
You have a personal interest in a matter if that matter affects the well-being or financial position of you, your 
relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association more than it would affect the majority of 
other people in the ward(s) to which the matter relates. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association 
positively or negatively.  If you or they would stand to lose by the decision, you should also declare it. 
 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to any interests, which you must register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal interest? 
 
You must declare it when you get to the item on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. You may still speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest. 
 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been appointed by the authority, or a body exercising functions of 
a public nature, you only need declare the interest if you are going to speak on the matter. 
 
What is a prejudicial interest? 
 
You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your personal interest 

is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest; and 
 
b) the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a licensing or regulatory matter; and 
 
c) the interest does not fall within one of the exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of the Code of 

Conduct. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial interest? 
 
If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw from the meeting.  However, under paragraph 12(2) of the 
Code of Conduct, if members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or answer 
questions about that matter, you may also make representations as if you were a member of the public.  
However, you must withdraw from the meeting once you have made your representations and before any 
debate starts. 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

                                                                                
 
To:  Delegated Decisions of the Board Member, City Development   

   
Date:  2nd February 2012         

 
Report of:  Head of Business Improvement 
 
Title of Report:  AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE MANUFACTURE, 

INSTALLATION AND ONGOING MAINTENANCE OF 
CITY CENTRE WAYFINDING SIGNAGE   

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:    
 
To grant project approval and delegated powers to the Executive 
Director for City Services to award a contract for the manufacture, 
installation and ongoing maintenance of City centre wayfinding signage. 
 
        
Key decision? No 
 
Executive lead member: Councillor Colin Cook 
 
Policy Framework: An efficient and effective Council 
 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) To grant project approval for the manufacture, installation and 

ongoing maintenance of new City centre wayfinding signage. 
 
2) To give delegated authority to the Executive Director for City 

Services (in consultation with Oxfordshire County Council) to enter 
into a contract for a period of four years from January 2012 to 31st 
December 2015 with the option to extend for up to a further two 
years at the Council’s discretion. 

 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets out the procurement route that has been taken to put in 

place a single contract for the manufacture, installation and ongoing 
maintenance of City centre wayfinding signage. 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

1



2. Background 
 
2.1 Oxford City Council in partnership with Oxfordshire County Council and 

the City West End Partnership are working together to improve 
wayfinding in Oxford City centre.  The objective of the project is to 
create a better awareness of City centre routes, visitor facilities, links 
and walkability, and encourage both visitors and regular users to 
explore further, walk more and get a better understanding of all the 
City’s attractions. 

 

2.2 The project will cover a number of elements: 
 

• Detailed development and manufacture of the sign structures. 

• Artwork for all signs. 

• Installation of the signage  

• Maintenance of the signs 

• Governance arrangements 
 
2.3 This project is being wholly funded by the West End Partnership who 

receive core funding from the City and County Council and West End 
S106 planning contributions.  The West End Partnership have provided 
the funds to the Council to manage this project. 

       
2.4 Placemarque has been appointed to produce the designs and work 

with our appointed supplier to ensure the new signage is manufactured 
and installed as specified and for any new replacement signage 
ordered during the contract period to be supplied in accordance with 
the agreed design. 

 
2.4 The design has been tested through mock-ups and prototypes and a 

major public consultation exercise has been undertaken, with an 
overwhelmingly positive public response. 

 
2.5 The City Council will be responsible for proactively managing the 

resulting contract.  Key activities will include: contract review meetings; 
KPI management; the receipt and analysis of management information 
provided; and the longer term creation of any added value. 

 
3. Tender Process 
 
3.1 The value of this contract required the Council to carry out a tender in 

accordance with the EU Procurement Regulations.   
 
3.2 There are a large number of providers in the market able to offer this 

service.  An open tender (single stage) process is being used as this 
will make the process easier for smaller local companies to apply for 
the opportunity. 

 
3.3 The tender opportunity was advertised in OJEU and on the South East 

Business Portal.     

2



 
3.4 The tender deadline was noon on 9th December 2011.   
 
3.5 The tender responses were evaluated by a panel of officers from 

Oxford City Council, Oxfordshire County Council and Placemarque. 
 
3.6 The submissions were fully evaluated taking into account technical 

competence, quality assurance, environmental policies, continuity 
plans and corporate social responsibility, insurance, health and safety, 
equality and diversity.  The Council’s Finance team were also asked to 
undertake a full financial assessment on the bidders.  The tenders 
were evaluated on 40% cost with 60% being allocated to the technical 
specification. 

 
3.7 Two shortlisted suppliers were invited to a meeting to clarify parts of 

their tender submission.  It is proposed that an award recommendation 
be made to one of these suppliers following further evaluation.  

 
4. Other Options 
 
4.1 The Constitution and the Procurement, Commissioning and Supplier 

Strategy both advise that the Single Member decision process 
considers what other options are available before giving major project 
approval and awarding a contract over £100K.  These are detailed 
below: 

 
� Do nothing - By not continuing with the project the funds being 
provided by the County Council will be lost and the City will not 
have the new signage. 

 
 

� Use an existing framework contract, set up by another 
organisation – There are no complaint frameworks available. 

 
5. Savings and other benefits of this contract 
 
5.1 By carrying out the tender process and awarding a single contract the 

Council will achieve its objective of providing uniformity in its city centre 
signage that will enhance the information provision for our residents 
and visitors.  

            
           The single ongoing contract provides the Council with agreed pricing 

over the contract period. 
 
5.2 Operational benefits include: 
 

• Creating better awareness of city centre routes, visitor facilities, 
improve links and walkability.  This will encourage both visitors 
and regular users to explore further, walk more and get a better 
understanding of all the City’s attractions. 

3



 

• Consistent signage design over the contract period from a 
supplier with the knowledge and expertise to provide the signage 
within an agreed timeframe 

 
6. Financial Implications 
 
6.1 The project is part funded by the West End Partnership. The budget for 

the project is held by the City Council.   
 
6.2 Core funding for the partnership comes from the City and County 

Council. The City Council was successful in securing government grant 
funding under new growth points, some of which has been put into the 
West End Partnership.  Although the New Growth Points grant has 
ended there remains in the order of £300K of unspent capital in the city 
centre account. 

 
The grant from the government was an unconditional grant, although 
principally was secured to support public realm improvements in the 
West End and housing delivery in the City principally at Barton, 
Blackbird Leys and the West End itself.  The Wayfinding project in the 
West End aligns with the budget purpose. 
 
The project is also part funded from West End S106 planning 
contributions. The City Council has recently completed a Section 106 
Planning Agreement with the owner of the Clarendon Shopping Centre.  
This relates to planning permission for a significant extension at the 
rear of the shopping centre.  In the agreement the City Council will 
receive £182K on commencement of the development to mitigate the 
impact of development in the West End.  It has been agreed with the 
developer that the money can be used on the Wayfinding project.  
Commencement is expected in January 2012.  However, even if this 
money is not forthcoming in time, there is already £300k in the West 
End S106 planning contributions ‘pot’.  
 
Therefore the Wayfinding project is funded from two sources; the West 
End Partnership and from the West End Section 106 income.  None of 
the Wayfinding project budget draws from the City Council’s general 
fund budget. 
 
At a meeting of the West End Partnership Programme Board held on 
15th December 2011 it was noted that maintenance requirements will 
be lessened when the signs replace the (larger number) of existing 
signs which are being removed as part of the contract and that any 
additional costs will be limited to accidental damage and vandalism. 
The board agreed that provision be made in the project budget for 
future maintenance requirements by means of commuted sum of 
£20,000 (i.e. £2K pa over 10 years). 

 

4



6.3 The City’s Finance team have reviewed the short-listed companies in 
terms of financial sustainability. 

 
7. Legal Implications 
 
7.1 This contract is being tendered in accordance with the EU Procurement 

regulations. 
 
7.2 The operating terms and conditions of the contracts have been agreed 

between Oxford City Council and Oxfordshire County Council and 
Oxford City Council will act as the contract manager. 

 
8. Risk Management 
 

 Risk Likelihood Mitigation 

Preferred supplier 
experiences financial 
difficulties  

M 
Regular financial 
monitoring will be 
conducted.  

Contract no longer 
satisfies Oxford City 
Council needs. 

L 
No level of business has 
been guaranteed. 

 
9. Climate Change/Environmental Impact 
 
9.1  No  impact 
 
10. Equalities Impact 
 
10.1 Only suppliers who support and adhere to the Council’s Living Wage 

Policy were short-listed to presentation stage. 
 
 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name: Deborah Darch  
Job Title: Procurement Officer 
Service Area/Department: Business Improvement 
Tel:  01865 252346  e-mail:  ddarch@oxford.gov.uk 
 

List of background papers: None 
Version number: Final 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Wayfinding Implementation Project

